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A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date: 11/14/14

Facility Number: 000889

Provider Number: 15G375

AIM Number: 100244340

Surveyor: Bridget Brown, Life Safety 

Code Specialist

At this Life Safety Code survey, Child 

Adult Resource Services Inc. was found 

not in compliance with Requirements for 

Participation in Medicaid, 42 CFR 

Subpart 483.470(j), Life Safety from Fire 

and the 2000 edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 32, New 

Residential Board and Care Occupancies.

This two story facility was fully 

sprinklered.  The facility has a monitored 

fire alarm system with smoke detection in 

client rooms, corridors and common 

living areas on all levels.  The facility has 

the capacity for 8 and had a census of 8 at 

the time of this survey.
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Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Prompt with 

an E-Score of 0.7.

Quality Review by Dennis Austill, Life 

Safety Code Specialist on 11/20/14.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

PROMPT

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and initiates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1, 

32.2.3.5.2.  The adequacy of the water 

supply is documented to the authority having 

jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: In prompt evacuation 

facilities, an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 13D, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One 

and Two Family Dwellings and 

Manufactured Homes, is permitted.  

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

permitted.  Facilities with more than eight 

residents are treated as two-family dwellings 

with regard to water supply.  Additionally, 

entrance foyers are sprinklered.

Exception No. 2: Not applicable

K02S056
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Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. 

ft., provided that such spaces are finished 

with lath and plaster or material providing a 

15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to an Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

SLOW

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and initiates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1.  The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a  

30 minute water supply, is permitted.  All 
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habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

treated as two family dwellings with regard 

to water supply.

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or material 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not Applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 32.2.3.5.5.

MPRACTICAL

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and shall initiate the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 32.2.3.4.1.  The 

adequacy of the water supply isdocumented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.     

32.2.3.5.2.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.
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Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler system in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a 

30 minute water supply, is permitted.  All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Facilities with more than eight residents are 

treated as two family dwellings with regard 

to water supply.

Exception No. 3: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 5: In impractical evacuation 

capability facilities up to and including four 

stores in height, systems in accordance with 

NFPA 13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to and Including Four 

Stores in Height, are permitted. All habitable 

areas and closets are sprinklered.

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

1.    Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure sprinkler 

piping for 1 of 1 automatic sprinkler 

systems was maintained free of external 

loads.  NFPA 25, 2-2.2.2 requires 

sprinkler piping shall be not be subjected 

to external loads by materials either 

resting on the pipe or hung from the pipe.  

This deficient practice affects all 

occupants.

K02S056  

On December 2, 2014, C.A.R.S. 

maintenance removed the wiring 

and cables that was attached and 

hanging from the sprinkler system 

pipes. On this same day, 

C.A.R.S. maintenance cleaned 

the sprinkler head that was 

located under the stairway.  All 

gray “fuzzy material” was 

removed.  C.A.R.S. maintenance 

will continue to complete a 

monthly inspection of each 

C.A.R.S. group home (which 

12/02/2014  12:00:00AM
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Findings include:

Based on observation with theLead Staff 

on 11/14/14 at 1:30 p.m., the overhead 

sprinkler pipe in the sprinkler riser room 

was used to support a bundle of wires and 

cable tied to the pipe.  The Lead Staff 

acknowledged at the time of observation 

the sprinkler pipe was being used as a 

hanger for the wires and cable.

2.  Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure sprinkler 

heads providing protection for 8 of 8 

clients were maintained.   LSC 9.7.5 

refers to NFPA 25, the Standard for the 

Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of 

Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.  

NFPA 25, 2-2.1.1 requires sprinklers to 

be maintained and free of foreign 

materials.  This deficient practice could 

affect all staff, visitors and residents.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the Lead Staff 

on 11/14/14 at 1:30 p.m., the sprinkler 

head protecting the sprinkler riser room 

located under the stairway was coated 

with a gray fuzzy material.  The Lead 

Staff acknowledged at the time of 

observation, the sprinkler head was not 

clean.

includes facility #889) to ensure 

sprinkler systems and pipes are 

maintained and free of foreign 

materials.  This monthly 

inspection will also ensure each 

sprinkler head is clean and free of 

foreign material.  C.A.R.S. 

Operations Manager will review 

all Monthly Inspection Reports 

and work directly with the Senior 

Residential Manager to ensure 

maintenance; accessibility and 

safety issues have been 

addressed and corrected. 
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483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

The facility holds evacuation drills at least 

quarterly for each shift of personnel and 

under varied conditions to ensure that all 

personnel on all shifts are trained to perform 

assigned tasks; and ensure that all 

personnel on all shifts are familiar with the 

use of the facility's emergency and disaster 

plans and procedures.

The facility must - 

(i) Actually evacuate clients during at least 

one drill each year on each shift; 

(ii) Make special provisions for the 

evacuation of clients with physical 

disabilities; 

(iii) File a report and evaluation on each drill; 

(iv) Investigate all problems with evacuation 

drills, including accidents and take corrective 

action: and 

(v) During fire drills, clients may be 

evacuated to a safe area in facilities certified 

under the Health Care Occupancies Chapter 

of the Life Safety Code.

Facilities meet the requirements of 

paragraphs (1) and (2) of this section for any 

live-in and relief staff that they utilize.

K02S152

 

Based on record review and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure fire and 

evacuation drills were varied for 2 of 3 

shifts.  This deficient practice affects all 

occupants.

Findings include:

K02S152 On November 26, 2014, the 

C.A.R.S. Residential Drill 

Schedule was updated.  This 

updated Drill Schedule will be 

implemented on December 1, 

2014 for all C.A.R.S. group 

homes (which includes facility 

#889).  The updated drill 

schedule now includes a specific 

1.50 hour timeframe for a “sleep 

12/01/2014  12:00:00AM
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Based on review of fire Drill Forms on 

11/13/14 at 1:15 p.m. with the Lead Staff, 

fire drills were varied less than one hour 

apart for all overnight and second shift 

drills during the past year.  Second shift 

drills were documented on 02.09/14 at 

6:00 p.m., 05/04/14 and 06/06/14 at 5:15 

p.m.  Overnight drills were conducted at 

5:50 a.m. on 03/06/14, 5:45 a.m. on 

06/03/14 and 10/07/14, and 5:30 a.m. on 

08/1/14.  The Lead Staff agreed at the 

time of record review, the overnight drills 

were done around the same time period.

time” drill to be completed by 

direct care staff.  Time frames 

include…Midnight to 1:30am / 

1:30am to 3:00am / 3:00am – 

4:30am / 4:30am – 5:59am.  After 

an evacuation drill has been 

completed, the appropriate direct 

care staff will complete the 

necessary drill form.  The Senior 

Residential Manager will be 

responsible for reviewing all 

completed drill forms to (1) 

ensure drills are being completed 

during various times (2) ensure 

the form has been filled out 

correctly by direct care staff (3) 

evaluate the success of the drill 

(4) determine if a plan of 

correction needs to be put into 

place for a staff and/or resident.  

The updated Residential Drill 

Schedule has been attached to 

this Plan of Correction for review. 
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